
Page 1 of 4 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting: February 29, 2016 
Present: Murphy, Freiman, Gibbs, Searle, Morgan 
Also Present: Larsen, Jop 
Minutes Approved: 
 
Warrants Approved: #2016-031 in the amount of $3,534,243.13 
 
Meeting called to order at 7:00pm  
 
1.     Citizen Speak 
 
None 
 
2.     Executive Director’s Update 
 
Minutes 

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to approve the 
minutes of the February 8, 2016 and February 22, 2016 Board of Selectmen Meetings. 

Mr. Larsen conferred with the Board as to whether they would be amenable to a 6:30pm start next 
Monday, March 7, 2016.  The Board agreed. 

Bond Sale Approval - Treasurer 

Marc Waldman, Town Treasurer joined the Board.  Mr. Waldman updated the Board on the status of the 
bond sale.   Mr. Larsen noted that this is a refinancing transaction as opposed to a new financing 
transaction and that they would take advantage of some cost saving measures.   Mr. Waldman noted 
that the municipal bond market has been favorable and that there is an opportunity to refinance some 
existing debt.   He noted that after all associated costs, the taxpayers would save in excess of 1.1 million 
dollars.    

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to approve the 
attached motion as read by Ms. Gibbs. 

The Board signed the bond sale documents.  

Finalization of Existing Conservation Restrictions 

Brandon Schmitt, Natural Resources Commission (NRC) Director and Stephen Murphy, NRC Chair joined 
the Board.   Mr. Schmitt noted that last May the Planning Department was approached for information 
regarding the development potential of Parcel 8-10 (85 McLean Street), which is part of the Sunlife 
Property.  A development agreement was executed with regards to a project on the site in 1999 which 
included a conservation restriction for the property.  He noted that upon further research that there 
was a conservation restriction that was not properly recorded.   The NRC has had preapproval by the 
state and has vetted the Conservation Restriction with Town Counsel.   Currently there is an updated 
conservation restriction which mirrors the previous conservation restriction.  A municipal certification 
and field inspection have been conducted.  The NRC has approved the grant by signing the conservation 



Page 2 of 4 

 

restriction.   The last step is the Board of Selectmen approving the grant of conservation restriction as 
well as approving the conservation restriction. 

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to accept the 
proposed conservation restriction on two parcels of land totaling 2.04 acres from Sun Life Company of 
Canada. 

NRC Annual Town Meeting Update  

Brandon Schmitt, Stephen Murphy, and Michael Zehner, Planning Director joined the Board.    

Zoning Amendments 

Mr. Zehner gave a brief explanation of Article 28, sponsored by the NRC and the Planning Board, to 
rezone 28 parcels owned by the NRC from single residence and education to the conservation zoning 
district.  He described the two current draft motions.   He noted he hopes to make the alternative 
motion the primary motion.  The Board asked questions.   The Board indicated their support and noted 
they would wait until after the Planning Board had met to take a vote. 

Plastic Bags Bylaw 

Brandon Schmitt, Lise Olney, Raina McManus and Ellen Korpi joined the Board.   Ms. Olney discussed an 
NRC proposal to deal with the problem of plastic litter.  She noted that the NRC will ask Town Meeting 
Members to vote on a proposed bylaw to restrict the distribution of disposable plastic bags.  Ms. Olney 
gave a presentation which explained why the NRC is interested in this issue as well as the process to 
move forward and key provisions of the bylaw.   They asked for the Boards support.  

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to support 
Article 33 to amend the Town Bylaws to reduce single-use plastic check-out bags. 

Natural Gas Leaks 

Ms. Korpi briefed the Board on the issue of gas leaks in Wellesley and proposed two recommendations. 
She encouraged the Board to assist in the mitigation of the problem by way of a resolution in support of 
house bills H2870 and H2871.  Ms. Korpi briefly reviewed each of these house bills.  She also encouraged 
the Board to form a Gas Leaks Working Group.  She discussed the purpose of the group and possible 
membership.  The Board asked questions. 

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to approve the 
proposed resolution concerning lost and unaccounted for gas as distributed. 

Mr. Murphy noted that they have not had a chance to discuss the formation of a working group and that 
they would like some time to reflect on this issue.  Paul Dale joined the Board and briefly updated the 
Board on the Gas leak issue. 

Kingsbury/Route 9 Intersection Proposal 

Dave Hickey, Town Engineer, Michael Zehner, Planning Director, Catherine Johnson, Planning Board 
Member and Deputy Police Chief Pilecki joined the Board.  Mr. Larsen reviewed possible action by Town 



Page 3 of 4 

 

Meeting to appropriate funds to reconfigure the intersection of Kingsbury St. and Route 9.  He noted 
that MassDOT is planning to resurface Route 9 in 2017.  Recognizing the Town has viewed the 
intersection as a public safety issue MassDOT has agreed to include the reconfiguration of the 
intersection with the repaving of Route 9.  The Town’s traffic engineering firm was asked to study a 
proposed plan for redoing the intersection and help to assess if the plan, as proposed, makes sense from 
various perspectives.   Mr. Larsen displayed the MassDOT proposed plan for the intersection and briefly 
reviewed the proposal.   He noted between now and Town Meeting it will be necessary to garner input 
from residents.    He reviewed the MassDOT assessment of the intersections. Mr. Larsen noted the 
biggest issue is the tradeoff between safety improvements vs. operational deterioration. A study of the 
Route 9 corridor is simultaneously underway.  MassDOT is proposing to do resurfacing while the 
corridor study is ongoing.  The project estimate is approximately 7 million dollars.  The Town’s share of 
the project cost is approximately $609,000.  The Board will seek $700,000 from Town Meeting which 
includes contingency.  Mr. Larsen noted there is a limited window to get the project bid.  Deputy Chief 
Pilecki noted that there is an important safety benefit to this project and that the majority of accidents 
at this intersection are Wellesley residents.   Mr. Zehner noted that he hopes to find middle ground with 
MassDOT and hopes to have something designed that meets our standards and expectations.  

Preparations for Annual Town Meeting 

Review motions 

Ms. Jop noted that the Library Trustees have voted to withdraw Article 32 at this time.   Mr. Morgan 
noted that they met with Town Counsel last week to discuss complexities around modifying the stance 
of alcohol in town buildings.  They felt they should have a public dialogue facilitated by the Selectmen 
and the Library Trustees Ms. Jop noted that they are still awaiting a few more motions and they should 
have them in good shape by the moderators meeting.  Mr. Larsen asked the Board for feedback on the 
motions.   

Town-Wide Financial Plan 

Mr. Larsen noted that a hard copy of the latest draft was included in the Board’s mailing which 
contained updated budget figures.  He is awaiting feedback from Advisory.  The budget is balanced with 
the use of $2.5 million in free cash .  There is currently no provision in the budget for the cost of 
settlement for the open union contracts on the town side.   Should they reach settlement in advance of 
the advisory book an adjustment will be made.    Mr. Larsen asked the Board to authorize the chair to 
sign the Town Wide Financial Plan.  

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to authorize 
the Chair of the Board of Selectmen to sign the Town-Wide Financial Plan 

Old Business/New Business 

Mr. Morgan noted that Sharon Gray of the School Committee has sent around a draft report for the BOS 
and School Committee on the Hardy Hunnewell Upham.  He asked that if the Board had any comments 
to please get them into Sharon so they will be reflected in the advisory report.  

Executive Session 



Page 4 of 4 

 

Upon a motion made by Ms. Gibbs and seconded by Ms. Freiman the Board voted (5-0) to enter 
Executive Session to discuss strategy for collective bargaining with the Superior Officers Union. 

See Executive Session minutes. 

The Board of Selectmen’s Meeting was adjourned at 10:15pm 

Documents Presented: 

• Plastic Bag Bylaw 
• Gas Leaks in Wellesley 
• Kingsbury St/Route 9  Proposal 

 

 


